
MINUTES 
HEART OF GEORGIA ALTAMAHA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

February 11, 2025 
 

 

The Heart of Georgia Altamaha Workforce Development Board of Service Delivery Region 9 
met Tuesday, February 11,2025 at The Economic Development Center, Vidalia, Georgia.  
 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
        Carolyn Blackshear  Rochelle Culver 
        Matt Donaldson   Sharon Flanagan 
        Ashley Googe   Randall Holcomb 
        Tim Herrington   Dr. Margaret Hightower 
        Dr. Hank Hobbs   Mac Jordan 
        Keith Miles   Mel Powell 
        Clay Reid    Dr. Barry Dotson 
        Lee Radney   Ted Buford 
        Lisa Livingston   Roy Selph 
        Raymond McCullough  Jason Whitlow 
        John Shaw    Hugh Darnley 
        Alfred Wheeler     
          

MEMBERS ABSENT   
         Dan Bennett   Kim Edge 
         Michelle Johnson   Martha McBride 
         Joe Sikes    Marshall Smith 
         Bobby Cox   Doug Rooks 
         Billy Trapnell   John Turner 
         Guy Singletary   Ryan Waldrep 
                                                                                                                                                                                         

GUEST 
Tracy Sulharowski, Georgia Department of Human Services Division of Child Support Services'  

Susan Woodard, Technical College System of Georgia Office of Workforce Development  
Kelly Peacock, Wiregrass Technical College 
Susan Cross, Southeastern Technical College 

Shamada Carr, Georgia Vocational Rehab Association 
          
                 

 

STAFF 
              Keith Dixon                                        Brett Manning  

                                      Heather Ernst                                      Alex Clements 
              Allie Williams                                    Delores Kesler 
              Alexis Eason                 Carla Mills 
   Angellena Griffin                                  

     Sandy Bunton 
 
 
 



CALL TO ORDER 
Co-Chair Carolyn Blackshear called the meeting to order. A quorum was present.  Guest present 
included Tracy Sulharowski with Georgia Department of Human Services Division of Child 
Support Services', Susan Woodard with Technical College System of Georgia Office of Workforce 
Development, Kelly Peacock with Wiregrass Technical College, Susan Cross with Southeastern 
Technical College, Shamada Carr with Georgia Vocational Rehab Association. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Randall Holcomb made a motion that was seconded by Matt Donaldson to approve December 10, 
2024, meeting minutes. Motion Carried.  

GUEST SPEAKER                                                                                                                 
Heather Ernst explained that the State has asked us to pilot a program for the disaster response 
needs within the counties. This will be a collection of information and resources that will be 
made available to the citizens of the county if a disaster occurs. When tropical storm Debby and 
Hurricane Helene came through, they caused a lot of damage. Plans were in place, but not all 
concerns were covered.  Angellena Griffin stated that she once resided in Adrian, Georgia, with 
her parents. During Hurricane Helene, her parents lost their family home due to a tornado. She 
stated that they would not have had a place to go if they had not had family to stay with during 
that time. Angellena stated that Adrian has an old school building that could have been open to 
the public for people to go to for safety. This pilot program will help identify resources that 
could be utilized during disaster response to better help the citizens within the counties. Heather 
stated that they would be putting together a survey to get feedback and input from employers, 
city and county officials, and citizens of all areas. They will also be putting together workshops 
within the communities to gather ideas from several individuals. The State hopes to use this 
information to gain insight into the needs of rural communities. Heather stated that anyone who 
wanted to provide information or had questions should contact a staff member.                                                                                                              

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
Keith stated that as of right now, the funding process is flowing. WIOA was to be reauthorized in 
2021, but it has been funded under the continuing resolution package in current years. We do not 
know what this will look like in the future. He stated that Sandy sent information regarding the 
Technical College System of Georgia Kiosk that is available to be placed in each county. He 
explained that the staff will continue to be in these counties, but the kiosk will enhance accessibility 
to WIOA services. He encouraged the Workforce Development Board to suggest areas where 
kiosks could be set up for public access. The space would need internet, power, and a desk. He 
stated John Shaw will help provide the kiosks within the region. Keith referred the WDB to the 
Statewide WIOA Impact sheet and explained that these are the participants served in Georgia. He 
stated that it looks like funding will continue to be cut every year, so we will be adjusting some of 
the One-Stop hours and locations. This would save funding and allow us to serve more customers. 
Keith also stated that at the last meeting, a suggestion on the meeting assessment asked for more 
time for members to ask questions after each report. He said that if any board member has a 
question, please do not hesitate to ask. 
 
 
 



ATTENDANCE COMMITTEE 
Dr. Hank Hobbs thanked the WDB members for their attendance.  

BUDGET AND EVALUATION 

Mac Jordan stated that the Budget and Evaluation committee would like to make a motion to add 
the Esthetician Program and Associates in Science in Nursing to the Ogeechee Technical College’s 
Eligible Training Provider List. Seconded by Matt Donaldson. Motion Carried.  

Mac Jordan referred the WDB members to the Heart of Georgia WIOA Expenditure Report. He 
stated that 61% of the funding has been spent.  

Keith stated that once the state revises its plan, we will update the Regional Plan to comply with 
the state and federal plans. 
 
ONE-STOP COMMITTEE 
Jason Whitlow referred the WDB members to the One-Stop report. He stated that the visits are 
lower, the jobs posted to the web page are lower, and the number of hits on the website is up. 
 
PLAN AND PROGRAM REVIEW 
Tim Herrington referred the WDB members to the Customer Counts Report. This report explains 
the number of customers served. The total of customers served is 8,679, which is an increase of 
2,192 customers. The report is divided into two sections, business services (5% of the budget) and 
training services (95% of the budget). He encouraged the WDB members to look at their county 
and the numbers represented in each program within their county. The ITA numbers did not 
increase from the last meeting. Youth numbers increased by 8 customers. There was also an 
increase in National Dislocated Workers Grant customers. 
 
PUBLIC AWARENESS/ EMPLOYER COMMITTEE 
Rochelle Culver referred the WDB members to the Publicity Report.  
The Job Training Unlimited staff participated in the following events:  
December 17th- Parkers hosted a meeting at the Evans County One-Stop.  
January 7th- Staff visited Southeastern Technical College in Swainsboro to promote WIOA 
services.  
January 13th- Staff visited Johnson County High School to promote WIOA services.  
January 14th- Staff visited Treutlen County High School to promote WIOA services. Staff 
participated in the Disaster Resilience Workshop Pilot virtual workshop.  
January 15th- Staff visited Wilcox County High School to promote WIOA services.  
January 16th- Staff visited Bleckley County High School to promote WIOA services.  
January 17th- Always Caring hosted a hiring event at the Evans County One-Stop.  
January 28th- Staff participated in the Disaster Resilience Workshop Pilot virtual workshop.  
January 30th & 31st- Staff attended the Georgia Workforce Leadership Association conference 
held at Lake Lanier.  
February 11th- Parkers hosted a meeting at the Evans County One-Stop. 
 
 



YOUTH COMMITTEE 
Keith stated that there was some discussion from the state that the youth funding could be 
terminated. He noted that a decision should be made by April.  
 
UNEMPLOYMENT 
John Shaw stated that the state's unemployment rate is 3.4%, and the Heart of Georgia Altamaha 
region is 3.6%.  
  
RC REPORT 
Brett Manning stated that they have started working on Comprehensive Plans for Wayne, 
Montgomery, and Telfair Counties. They are in the early stages of developing a downtown 
master plan for the City of Eastman so they can apply for rural zone destinations. He stated that 
as of now, all funding received from the state is still flowing. He said that more clarification 
should be available in March. Several projects have been put on hold due to counties honoring 
the funding freeze.  
  
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.  
  
Respectfully submitted, 
  
  
Allie Williams 


